



Journal of the Senate

State of Indiana

120th General Assembly

Second Regular Session

Sixth Meeting Day

Wednesday Afternoon

January 10, 2018

The Senate convened at 1:15 p.m., with the President of the Senate, Suzanne Crouch, in the Chair.

Prayer was offered by Senator John B. Crane.

The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was led by Senator Crane.

The Chair ordered the roll of the Senate to be called. Those present were:

Alting	Leising
Bassler	Long
Becker	Melton
Bohacek	Merritt
Boots	Messmer
Bray	Mishler
Breaux	Mrvan
Brown, L.	Niemeyer
Buck	Niezgodski
Charbonneau	Perfect
Crane	Raatz
Crider	Randolph, Lonnie M.
Delph	Ruckelshaus
Doriot	Sandlin
Eckerty <input checked="" type="checkbox"/>	Smith, J.
Ford	Spartz
Freeman	Stoops
Glick	Tallian
Grooms	Taylor, G.
Head	Tomes
Holdman	Walker
Houchin	Young, M.
Koch	Zakas
Kruse	Zay
Lanane	

Roll Call 9: present 48; excused 1. [Note: A indicates those who were excused.] The Chair announced a quorum present. Pursuant to Senate Rule 5(d), no motion having been heard, the Journal of the previous day was considered read.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

The following bills and resolutions were read a first time by title and referred to the respective committees:

SB 0244 — Holdman (Rules and Legislative Procedure)

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning taxation.

SB 0256 — Holdman (Rules and Legislative Procedure)

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning taxation.

SB 0317 — Stoops (Tax and Fiscal Policy)

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning taxation.

SB 0331 — Leising (Agriculture)

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning health.

SB 0333 — Grooms, Ford (Public Policy)

A BILL FOR AN ACT concerning gaming.

SB 0346 — Taylor G (Tax and Fiscal Policy)

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning taxation and to make an appropriation.

SB 0349 — Tallian (Rules and Legislative Procedure)

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning property.

SB 0391 — Niemeyer (Tax and Fiscal Policy)

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning taxation.

SB 0395 — Grooms (Tax and Fiscal Policy)

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning taxation.

SB 0409 — Charbonneau (Environmental Affairs)

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning local government.

SB 0410 — Charbonneau (Health and Provider Services)

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning professions and occupations.

SB 0414 — Niemeyer (Tax and Fiscal Policy)

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning military and veterans.

SB 0415 — Eckerty (Education and Career Development)

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning higher education.

SB 0416 — Eckerty (Civil Law)

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning trade regulation.

SB 0417 — Doriot (Natural Resources)

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning professions and occupations.

SB 0418 — Glick, Ruckelshaus, Bohacek, Grooms (Corrections and Criminal Law)

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning criminal law and procedure.

- SB 0419** — Doriot (Commerce and Technology)
A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning local government.
- SB 0420** — Perfect (Insurance and Financial Institutions)
A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning trade regulation.
- SB 0421** — Becker (Health and Provider Services)
A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning human services.
- SB 0422** — Becker (Local Government)
A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning local government.
- SB 0423** — Becker (Civil Law)
A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning property.
- SB 0424** — Messmer (Commerce and Technology)
A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning labor and safety.
- SB 0425** — Doriot (Pensions and Labor)
A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning labor and safety.
- SB 0426** — Melton (Natural Resources)
A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning natural and cultural resources.
- SB 0427** — Tallian (Elections)
A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning elections.
- SB 0428** — Zay (Family and Children Services)
A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning family law and juvenile law.
- SB 0429** — Bray (Judiciary)
A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning criminal law and procedure.
- SB 0430** — Sandlin (Commerce and Technology)
A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning trade regulation.
- SB 0431** — Brown L (Civil Law)
A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning family law and juvenile law.
- SB 0432** — Koch (Corrections and Criminal Law)
A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning criminal law and procedure.
- SB 0433** — Spartz, Charbonneau (Health and Provider Services)
A BILL FOR AN ACT concerning health.
- SB 0434** — Spartz (Education and Career Development)
A BILL FOR AN ACT concerning education.
- SB 0435** — Ford (Commerce and Technology)
A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning labor and safety.

- SB 0436** — Ford (Pensions and Labor)
A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning civil procedure.
- SB 0437** — Taylor G (Tax and Fiscal Policy)
A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning taxation.
- SB 0438** — Spartz, Holdman (Tax and Fiscal Policy)
A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning state offices and administration.
- SJ 0014** — Brown L (Rules and Legislative Procedure)
A JOINT RESOLUTION requesting the Congress to call a constitutional convention for the purpose of proposing an amendment to the Constitution of the United States concerning single subject matter legislation.

RESOLUTIONS ON FIRST READING

Senate Concurrent Resolution 4

Senate Concurrent Resolution 4, introduced by Senators Niezgodski and Delph:

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION honoring the work of the United Association of Union Plumbers, Pipefitters, Welders, Sprinklefitters and Service Techs of the United States and Canada on their Veterans in Piping Program.

Whereas, The difficulty of veterans in the United States finding work has been well documented in recent years and has become the focus of many worthwhile organizations, including the United Association of Union Plumbers, Pipefitters, Welders, Sprinklefitters and Service Techs of the United States and Canada (UA);

Whereas, The UA has partnered with the military to create a UA Veterans in Piping (VIP) program that offers high-quality skills training and jobs in the pipe trades to US veterans and active duty military personnel preparing to leave the service;

Whereas, UA General President Mark McManus oversees the program as a means of addressing two important issues; the growing shortage in the construction industry of skilled workers and an exceedingly high unemployment for US veterans;

Whereas, VIP participants enroll in accelerated 18-week courses in welding or HVAC-R service as both fields are experiencing an increased demand for skilled workers;

Whereas, VIP participants also earn industry-recognized certifications and upon graduation gain direct entry into UA apprenticeship, leading to lifelong opportunities; and

Whereas, Nationally, over 1,500 service men and women have completed the VIP program including 16 VIP graduates in Indiana: Therefore,

Be it resolved by the Senate of the General Assembly of the State of Indiana, the House of Representatives concurring:

SECTION 1. The General Assembly recognizes and honors the work of the UA and its Indiana Local Unions for their commitment to assisting our veterans with meaningful jobs training and placement ensuring that those who have served our nation valiantly can continue to be productive, working members of society.

The resolution was read in full and referred to the Committee on Veterans Affairs and The Military.

Senate Concurrent Resolution 14

Senate Concurrent Resolution 14, introduced by Senator Merritt:

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION encouraging physical therapists practicing in the state of Indiana to do their part in creating public awareness of physical therapy's role in reducing the opioid epidemic and the treatment of chronic pain.

Whereas, One in four individuals who receive long-term prescription opioids for non-cancer pain in primary care settings battle addiction, and 91 Americans die every day from an opioid overdose;

Whereas, Individuals who are addicted to prescription opioid painkillers are 40 times more likely to become addicted to heroin;

Whereas, There has been a 200% increase in the rate of overdose deaths involving opioid pain relievers and heroin since 2000;

Whereas, Indiana exceeded all but eight states in the number of pain prescriptions written per 100 people in 2012, indicating there were enough opioid prescriptions for every Hoosier to have his/her own bottle of pain pills;

Whereas, In 2016 in Indiana, opioid pain relievers were responsible for the deaths of 488 individuals;

Whereas, The American Physical Therapy Association declares physical therapy as a safe and effective alternative for the treatment of pain and enhancement of health, well-being, and quality of life through movement and education;

Whereas, The Indiana Chapter of the American Physical Therapy Association is participating in the #ChoosePT campaign to advocate for physical therapy as an alternative treatment to opioid prescriptions for treating chronic pain rather than masking the pain;

Whereas, The #ChoosePT campaign emphasizes the importance of therapeutic alliance with patients to create an environment where patients feel heard when describing their pain, and also are willing to listen to education and risk factors

regarding long-term use of opioids and discuss current or potential substance abuse behaviors; and

Whereas, The #ChoosePT campaign identifies resources, such as pain profiles, to develop a plan of care to treat patient pain and determine realistic functional goals based on patient presentation: Therefore,

Be it resolved by the Senate of the General Assembly of the State of Indiana, the House of Representatives concurring:

SECTION 1. That the Indiana General Assembly encourages physical therapists practicing in the state of Indiana to do their part in creating public awareness of physical therapy's role in reducing the opioid epidemic and the treatment of chronic pain. #ChoosePT.

SECTION 2. That the Secretary of the Senate is hereby directed to transmit a copy of this Resolution to the Indiana Chapter of the American Physical Therapy Association.

The resolution was read in full and referred to the Committee on Health and Provider Services.

Senate Resolution 8

Senate Resolution 8, introduced by Senator Merritt:

A SENATE RESOLUTION urging the legislative council to assign the topic of naloxone issues to the appropriate committee.

Whereas, Substance abuse is a pervasive and ever increasing problem within our society;

Whereas, Indiana ranks high with regard to the amount of opioid prescriptions that are being issued compared to other states, and prescription drugs are involved in most unintentional drug overdoses which have largely driven the rise in deaths;

Whereas, The use of naloxone to rapidly reverse an opioid overdose has helped greatly in the war against drugs;

Whereas, The management of the naloxone registry should be done by an agency that is best prepared to do so;

Whereas, The management of the naloxone registry should be given further study by the members of the Indiana general assembly;

Whereas, Further study should also be given to determining the most fiscally responsible way to make naloxone administration data available to CSR holders providing care to individuals who have overdosed; and

Whereas, The ultimate goal is to provide a patient with the best possible care: Therefore,

*Be it resolved by the Senate of the
General Assembly of the State of Indiana:*

SECTION 1. That the legislative council is urged to assign the topic of naloxone issues to the appropriate committee.

The resolution was read in full and referred to the Committee on Health and Provider Services.

REPORTS FROM COMMITTEES

COMMITTEE REPORT

Madam President: The Senate Committee on Judiciary, to which was referred Senate Bill 6, has had the same under consideration and begs leave to report the same back to the Senate with the recommendation that said bill do pass.
Committee Vote: Yeas 8, Nays 0.

BRAY, Chair

Report adopted.

COMMITTEE REPORT

Madam President: The Senate Committee on Judiciary, to which was referred Senate Bill 14, has had the same under consideration and begs leave to report the same back to the Senate with the recommendation that said bill do pass and be reassigned to the Senate Committee on Appropriations.
Committee Vote: Yeas 10, Nays 0.

BRAY, Chair

Report adopted.

COMMITTEE REPORT

Madam President: The Senate Committee on Judiciary, to which was referred Senate Bill 20, has had the same under consideration and begs leave to report the same back to the Senate with the recommendation that said bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 5, delete "This section does not apply to the use of a rifle".

Page 1, delete lines 6 through 16.

Page 1, line 17, strike "during the firearms season".

Page 1, line 17, after "deer" insert "**on privately owned land**".

Page 2, line 2, strike "only on privately owned land." and insert "**during the following hunting seasons established by the department:**

(A) The youth deer season.

(B) The firearms season.

(C) The special antlerless season where authorized by the department.

(D) The deer reduction season where authorized by the department."

Page 2, between lines 18 and 19, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"(e) The department shall adopt rules under IC 4-22-2 to authorize the use of a rifle to hunt deer on public property. Notwithstanding subsection (b), rules adopted under this subsection may specify the permitted:

(1) barrel length of the rifle;

(2) caliber of the bullet;

(3) maximum and minimum cartridge case; and

(4) number of cartridges that a hunter may possess while hunting deer."

Page 2, line 19, strike "(e)" and insert "(f)".

(Reference is to SB 20 as introduced.)

and when so amended that said bill do pass.

Committee Vote: Yeas 8, Nays 1.

BRAY, Chair

Report adopted.

COMMITTEE REPORT

Madam President: The Senate Committee on Rules and Legislative Procedure, to which was referred Senate Bill 79, has had the same under consideration and begs leave to report the same back to the Senate with the recommendation that said bill be amended as follows:

Delete the title and insert the following:

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning human services.

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert the following:

SECTION 1. IC 12-14-1-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.161-2007, SECTION 12, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 1. (a) Assistance under TANF shall be given to a dependent child who otherwise qualifies for assistance if the child is living in a family home of a person who **meets the income requirements set forth in section 1.7 of this chapter and is:**

(1) at least eighteen (18) years of age; and

(2) the child's relative, including:

(A) the child's mother, father, stepmother, stepfather, grandmother, or grandfather; or

(B) a relative not listed in clause (A) who has custody of the child.

(b) A parent or relative and a dependent child of the parent or relative are not eligible for TANF assistance when the physical custody of the dependent child was obtained for the purpose of establishing TANF eligibility.

(c) Except as provided in IC 12-14-28-3.3, a person convicted of a felony under IC 35-43-5-7 or IC 35-48-4 is not eligible to receive assistance under TANF for ten (10) years after the conviction.

(d) The assistance paid to a dependent child under this section may not be affected by the conviction of a parent or an essential person of the dependent child under subsection (c).

SECTION 2. IC 12-14-1-1.5, AS AMENDED BY P.L.128-2012, SECTION 10, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 1.5. (a) This section does not apply if the:

(1) dependent child does not have a living parent or legal guardian;

(2) whereabouts of the dependent child's parent or legal guardian are unknown;

(3) dependent child lived apart from the child's parent or legal guardian for a period of at least one (1) year before either:

(A) the birth of the dependent child's child; or

(B) the dependent child's application for TANF;

(4) dependent child provides proof, and the division agrees, that the physical health or safety of the dependent child or a child of the dependent child would be jeopardized if the dependent child or a child of the dependent child resides with the dependent child's parent, legal guardian, or adult relative; or

(5) dependent child is less than eighteen (18) years of age and is not married, but the dependent child or a child of the dependent child:

(A) has been alleged or adjudicated a child in need of services under IC 31-34 (or IC 31-6 before its repeal); or

(B) has been placed under the wardship or guardianship of the department of child services.

(b) Except as provided in subsection (d), a dependent child who is less than eighteen (18) years of age and is:

(1) not married; or

(2) married but not residing with or receiving support from a spouse;

and meets the income requirements set forth in section 1.7 of this chapter is entitled to assistance under TANF only if the dependent child and any children of the dependent child reside with a parent, a legal guardian, or an adult relative other than a parent or legal guardian of the dependent child. A legal guardian or an adult relative not listed in section 1(a)(2)(A) of this chapter must have custody of the child under a court order.

(c) The assistance for an eligible dependent child and each child of an eligible dependent child as described in subsection (b) shall be provided to the dependent child's parent, legal guardian, or other adult relative based on the eligibility of the parent, legal guardian, or other adult relative to receive assistance under TANF.

(d) This subsection applies to the parent of:

(1) a dependent child who has never married and who:

(A) has a child; or

(B) is pregnant; and

(2) a dependent child who has never married and is adjudicated to be the father of a child.

The parent of a dependent child described in subdivision (1) or (2) is financially responsible for the care of a child of the dependent child until the dependent child becomes eighteen (18) years of age.

SECTION 3. IC 12-14-1-1.7 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A **NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS** [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: **Sec. 1.7. (a) Assistance under**

TANF shall be given to a dependent child who otherwise qualifies for assistance if the child is living in a family home of a person who has a countable income that is not more than fifty percent (50%) of the federal income poverty level.

(b) The division shall amend the state TANF plan or take any other action necessary to implement this section.

SECTION 4. IC 12-14-2-5 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 5. **(a)** Except as provided in sections 5.1 and 5.3 of this chapter **and subject to the adjustment described in subsection (b)**, the following apply to the ~~amount of need recognized and~~ payment made under this chapter:

(1) The total ~~amount of need recognized and~~ payment made for a dependent child, other than for medical expenses, for a calendar month may not exceed ~~one two hundred fifty-five dollars (\$155):~~ **thirty-six dollars (\$236).**

(2) The total ~~amount of need recognized and~~ payment made to the person essential to the well-being of the dependent child, other than for medical expenses, for a calendar month may not exceed ~~one two hundred fifty-five dollars (\$155):~~ **thirty-six dollars (\$236).**

(3) The total ~~amount of need recognized and~~ payment made to one (1) dependent child and to the person essential to the well-being of the dependent child, other than for medical expenses, for a calendar month may not exceed ~~two three hundred fifty-five dollars (\$255):~~ **eighty-nine dollars (\$389).**

(4) If there is more than one (1) dependent child in the same home, the total ~~amount of need recognized and~~ payment made, other than for medical expenses, for a calendar month may not exceed ~~sixty-five ninety-nine dollars (\$65) (\$99)~~ for each additional child and, if the second parent of the child is incapacitated and is living in the home, the ~~amount of need recognized and~~ payment made may not exceed ~~sixty-five ninety-nine dollars (\$65) (\$99)~~ for the benefit of the incapacitated parent.

(b) The payment amounts specified in subsection (a) shall be adjusted each year using the Social Security cost of living adjustment rate.

SECTION 5. IC 12-14-2-5.1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.153-2011, SECTION 14, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 5.1. (a) Subject to section 5.2 of this chapter, a parent or an essential person may not receive payments if the person has received assistance under this article during the person's lifetime for twenty-four (24) months after June 30, 1995.

(b) A family receiving TANF under ~~section 5~~ of this chapter remains eligible to receive TANF services, including access to the Title IV-D child support enforcement program and the IMPACT (JOBS) program, when the family's income is greater than the ~~amount of need recognized eligibility~~ under ~~section 5 of this chapter; IC 12-14-1-1.7~~, but the family's gross income is less than one hundred percent (100%) of the federal income poverty level.

(c) A recipient family shall receive a cash assistance benefit under the TANF program of at least ten dollars (\$10) if:

(1) the family's income is greater than ~~the amount of need recognized under section 5 of this chapter; the income eligibility specified in IC 12-14-1-1.7;~~

(2) the family's gross income is less than one hundred percent (100%) of the federal income poverty level; and

(3) a parent or essential person receiving assistance has employment earnings.

SECTION 6. IC 12-14-2-5.3, AS AMENDED BY P.L.161-2007, SECTION 17, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 5.3. (a) This section does not apply to a dependent child:

(1) described in section ~~5.1(b)(3) or 5.1(b)(4)~~ 5.1 of this chapter;

(2) who is the firstborn of a child less than eighteen (18) years of age who is included in a TANF assistance group when the child becomes a first time minor parent (including all children in the case of a multiple birth); or

(3) who was conceived in a month the family was not receiving TANF assistance.

(b) Except as provided in subsection (c), after July 1, 1995, an additional payment (other than for medical expenses payable under IC 12-15) may not be made for a dependent child who is born more than ten (10) months after the date the family qualifies for assistance under this article.

(c) The division may adopt rules under IC 4-22-2 that authorize a voucher for goods and services related to child care that do not exceed one-half (1/2) of the assistance that a dependent child described in subsection (b) would otherwise receive under ~~section 5 of this chapter.~~

(d) A dependent child described in subsection (b) is eligible for all child support enforcement services provided in IC 31-25.

(e) Families receiving TANF assistance are encouraged to receive family planning counseling.

SECTION 7. IC 12-14-2-23 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 23. (a) This section applies only to a person's eligibility for assistance under section 5.1 of this chapter.

(b) As used in this section, "school" means a program resulting in high school graduation.

(c) Due to extraordinary circumstances, a person who is the parent of a dependent child, an essential person, or a dependent child may apply, in a manner prescribed by the division, for an exemption from the requirements of this chapter if the person can document that the person has complied with the personal responsibility agreement under section 21 of this chapter and the person demonstrates any of the following:

(1) The person has a substantial physical or mental disability that prevents the person from obtaining or participating in gainful employment.

(2) The person is a minor parent who is in school full time and who has a dependent child.

(3) The person is a minor parent who is enrolled full time

in an educational program culminating in a high school equivalency certificate and who has a dependent child.

A person seeking an exemption under this section must show documentation to the division to substantiate the person's claim for an exemption under subdivision (1), (2), or (3).

(d) After receiving an application for exemption from a parent, an essential person, or a dependent child under subsection (c), the division shall investigate and determine if the parent, essential person, or dependent child qualifies for an exemption from this chapter. The director shall make a final determination regarding:

(1) whether to grant an exemption;

(2) the length of an exemption, if granted, subject to subsection (f); and

(3) the extent of an exemption, if granted.

(e) If the director determines that a parent, an essential person, or a dependent child qualifies for an exemption under this chapter, the parent, essential person, or dependent child is entitled to receive one hundred percent (100%) of the payments that the parent, essential person, or dependent child is entitled to receive under ~~section 5 of this chapter~~, subject to any ratable reduction.

(f) An exemption granted under this section may not exceed one (1) year, but may be renewed.

(g) The division shall send a report each quarter to the legislative council and the budget committee detailing the number and type of exemptions granted under this section. A report sent under this subsection to the legislative council must be in an electronic format under IC 5-14-6.

(h) The division may adopt rules under IC 4-22-2 to carry out this section.

(Reference is to SB 79 as introduced.)

and when so amended that said bill be reassigned to the Senate Committee on Tax and Fiscal Policy.

LONG, Chair

Report adopted.

COMMITTEE REPORT

Madam President: The Senate Committee on Judiciary, to which was referred Senate Bill 126, has had the same under consideration and begs leave to report the same back to the Senate with the recommendation that said bill do pass and be reassigned to the Senate Committee on Appropriations.

Committee Vote: Yeas 10, Nays 0.

BRAY, Chair

Report adopted.

COMMITTEE REPORT

Madam President: The Senate Committee on Health and Provider Services, to which was referred Senate Bill 224, has had the same under consideration and begs leave to report the same back to the Senate with the recommendation that said bill do pass.

Committee Vote: Yeas 10, Nays 0.

CHARBONNEAU, Chair

Report adopted.

COMMITTEE REPORT

Madam President: The Senate Committee on Health and Provider Services, to which was referred Senate Bill 225, has had the same under consideration and begs leave to report the same back to the Senate with the recommendation that said bill do pass.

Committee Vote: Yeas 11, Nays 0.

CHARBONNEAU, Chair

Report adopted.

MESSAGE FROM THE HOUSE

Madam President: I am directed by the House to inform the Senate that the House has passed House Concurrent Resolutions 8 and 9 and the same are herewith transmitted for further action.

M. CAROLINE SPOTTS
Principal Clerk of the House

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Kruse be added as second author, Senator Koch be added as third author, and Senators M. Young, J. Smith, Delph, Lonnie M. Randolph, Mrvan and Tomes be added as coauthors of Senate Bill 8.

LEISING

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Lanane be added as coauthor of Senate Bill 9.

LEISING

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Niezgodski be added as coauthor of Senate Bill 11.

BOHACEK

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Melton be added as coauthor of Senate Bill 27.

BOOTS

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Lanane be removed as author of Senate Bill 79 and Senator Stoops be substituted therefor.

LANANE

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Charbonneau be added as third author and Senator Ford be added as coauthor of Senate Bill 96.

DELPH

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Melton be added as coauthor of Senate Bill 117.

LONNIE M. RANDOLPH

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Tallian be added as third author and Senator Lonnie M. Randolph be added as coauthor of Senate Bill 119.

GROOMS

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Melton be added as coauthor of Senate Bill 119.

GROOMS

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Niezgodski be added as coauthor of Senate Bill 130.

BOHACEK

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Niezgodski be added as coauthor of Senate Bill 134.

BOHACEK

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Niezgodski be added as coauthor of Senate Bill 135.

BOHACEK

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator G. Taylor be added as coauthor of Senate Bill 137.

BECKER

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Breaux be added as coauthor of Senate Bill 155.

WALKER

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Niezgodski be added as coauthor of Senate Bill 159.

RUCKELSHAUS

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Houchin be added as second author and Senator Merritt be added as third author of Senate Bill 225.

HEAD

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senators Breaux, Lanane, Melton, Niezgodski, Lonnie M. Randolph, Stoops, Tallian and G. Taylor be added as coauthors of Senate Bill 250.

MRVAN

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Koch be added as second author of Senate Bill 261.

BRAY

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Ford be added as second author of Senate Bill 333.

GROOMS

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Ruckelshaus be added as coauthor of Senate Bill 364.

MELTON

Motion prevailed.

1:22 p.m.

The Senate recessed until the fall of the gavel for a Joint Convention with the members of the House of Representatives.

The message of Chief Justice Loretta H. Rush, is recorded in the House Journal.

RECESS

The Senate reconvened at 2:45 p.m., with Senator Long in the Chair.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move we adjourn until 10:00 a.m., Thursday, January 11, 2018.

GLICK

Motion prevailed.

The Senate adjourned at 2:45 p.m.

JENNIFER L. MERTZ
Secretary of the Senate

SUZANNE CROUCH
President of the Senate